• FILED SUPREME COURT STATE OF WASHINGTON 8/4/2020 BY SUSAN L. CARLSON **CLERK** 

Court of Appeals Division I Case No. 81378-1-1 Court of Appeals Division II Case No. 53085-6-II

2020 AUG -3 AM 11: 26

#### 98854-4

# Supreme Court

# Of the State of Washington

#### KENNETH LEE.

Appellant,

Vs.

# **BOEING CO & DEPARTMENT OF** LABOR & INDUSTRIES.

Defendant

#### PETITION FOR REVIEW

Kenneth Lee Pro Se 29226 8th ave east Roy, WA 98580 Phone 253-235-1717

#

#### III. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

A.WHETHER SUBSTANTIAL EVIDENCE EXISTED FOR THE COURT OF APPEALS TO UPHOLD THE SUPERIOR COURTS

FINDINGS THAT MR. LEE MISREPRESENTED THE SEVERITY OF HIS INJURY,

- B. DID THE SUPERIOR COURT ERRED IN DECLINING HIS
  REQUEST TO REMOVE ALL REDACTIONS FROM ALL
  TRANSCIPTS?
- C. DID THE SUPERIOR COURT ERRED IN NOT

  INFORCING THE PROPER SERVICE OF COURT PAPERS

  TO KENNETH LEE?
- D. THE SUPERIOR COURT ERRED IN ALLOWING THE
  BOEING ATTORNEY AND THE DEPARTMENT OF
  LABOR INDUSTRIES ATTORNEY TO INTRODUCE
  EXHIBITS THAT WERE DENIED BY THE ATTORNEYS
  OF BOEING AND DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND
  INDUSTRIES AT THE BOARD OF INDUSTRIAL
  APPEALS HEARING.
- E. DID THE SUPERIOR COURT ERROR IN REJECTING
  KENNETH LEES JURY INTRUCTIONS, AND USING
  ONLY BOEINGS ATTORNEY, AND THE DEPARTMENT
  OF LABOR AND INDUSTRIES ATTORNEYS JURY
  INSTRUCTIONS ONLY.

# F. DID THE JUDGE ERROR IN NOT RECUSING HERSELF FROM THE TRIAL FOR CONFLICT OF INTEREST.

#### TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

WENDT V. DEPARTMENT IF LABOR & INDUS., 18Wn. App 674,682-83, 571 P.2d 299 (1977)

HARBOR PLYWOODCORP. V. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR & INDUS., 48 Wn.2d 55.,295 P.2d 310(1956)

RAY V. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR& INDUS., 177 Wash. 687, 33 P2d 375 (1934)

GROFF V. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR & INDUS., 65 Wn.2D 25, 44, 395 P.2d 622 (1964)

KALLOS V. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR & INDUS., Wn.2d 26,30,278 P.2d 393 (1955)

JACOBSON V. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR & INDUS., 37 Wn. 2d 444 448, 224 P.2d 338 (1950)

MILLER V. DEPARTMENT OF ABOR & INDUS., 200 Wash. 674,682-83, 94 P.2d 764 (1939)

TAMMY L. FOSTER, 52 AN Natta 178 (2000)

BROWN V. A-DEC, INC, 154 Or App 244 (1996)

MILLER V. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR & INDUS., 200 Wn. 675

(1939)

# **STATUTES**

**RCW 51** 

RCW 51.32.080

RCW 51.08.100

RCW 51.08.140

# **COURT RULES**

CrR 4.7.....

# **OTHER RULES AND REGULATIONS**

WAC 296-20-01002

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The appellant Kenneth lee offers this petition of review in support of his appeal. The Appellant (hereinafter "Kenneth Lee") asks that this court reverse the Verdict of the 12-person Jury. Kenneth Lee does not feel he was given a fair trial, and neither was the jury due to all the redactions that were allowed by Judge Susan K Serko. Kenneth Lee was in fact injured while working under The Boeing Company's supervision. During Kenneth Lee's treatments, there has been findings of CRPS. Kenneth Lee was also not served properly per court rules. Kramer and AAG Lucretia Greer served Kenneth Lee in court instead of 2 days before court.

On top of this Lucretia Greer the AAG, served Kenneth Lee a document in which had the wrong case number and it was filed in Kitsap county instead of Pierce county where it should have been filed. This was not a fair trial as one document was found to be altered from their original state ( see testimony of Aaron Hunt date changed from 2013 to 2003) and these documents were sworn in by Judge Hansen and were done under oath and penalty of perjury by the laws of the State of Washington.

Kenneth is unsure as to if there is more documents that were altered.

Jennifer A. Kramer also stated in her respondents brief that Kenneth Lee had been found to have malingered in regard to a prior claim, yet other

doctors such as Daniel Wanwig and Dr. Lynn Staker that worked in closer proximity and had more time with Kenneth Lee, said he had not been Malingering or faking.

Kenneth Lee was cleared of the wrongful misrepresentation charge in front of a three panel judge, yet Kenneth Lee is still having this charge used against him and had it used against him in court as well during the 12-person jury trial. They are reusing evidence that was deemed unestablished and non-convincing by Judge Linda L Williams and Judge Frank E. Fennerty, Junior. Judge Susan K. Serko denied Kenneth Lee to receive any amount of money for loss of enjoyment in life that has been caused by the Boeing Company drawing out this case. Kenneth Lee has also been found to be **Permanently Disabled** by more than one doctor.

Kenneth Lee's life was and has been affected in a negative manner due to his industrial injury. Kenneth Lee was robbed of even the simplest joys as a parent and lost a lot of independence because of his 2000 industrial injury. Dr. Matthew Drake who testified on behalf of Labor and Industries as well as The Boeing Company changed his testimony within less than a 6 month period. The Boeing Company and L&I used Dr. Drake as key witness and used him to accuse Kenneth Lee of Malingering.

Judge Susan K Serko overruled every objection Kenneth Lee had in exception to one which was renewed. Serko overruled only a few times however to Jennifer Kramer's and Lucretia Greer's objections. This was done during the Rulings Of Evidence for the Pierce County Cause No. 18-2-04583-1 dated October 23<sup>rd</sup>, 2018.

Kenneth Lee was served a document by Lucretia F. Greer dated October 23<sup>rd</sup>,2018. This document was served to Kenneth Lee the day of court. The document that Kenneth Lee received was drawn on paper for the Superior Court for the County of Kitsap. The document also had the wrong cause number on it, when this was brought to Judge Serko's attention, Lucretia Greer crossed out the original cause number and wrote in the right one in pen. Kenneth Lee was served another document by Lucretia Greer where she had changed the date on Aaron Hunt's testimony from February 5<sup>th</sup>, 2013 to February 5<sup>th</sup>, 2003(see Exhibit 1 for case # 53085-6-11)

Thomas B. Curtis MD. did an initial evaluation on Kenneth Lee on June 19<sup>th</sup>. 2002 case number W475261, during which time he found a appearance of Chronic Regional Pain Syndrome, CRPS for short. This evaluation took place on 06/19/2002 at Virginia Mason Medical Center.

Dr. Daniel Wanwig testified under oath on November 23, 2016 that Ken Lee did have Permanent Disability and a mental health condition that was proximately caused by his industrial injury. This letter was turned in as exhibit 4 for case number 18-2-04583-1. In this letter Daniel Wanwig states "I hereby stand by my testimony and reaffirm that Kenneth Lee's permanent disability and mental health condition was proximately caused by the industrial injury which precluded Mr. Lee from working from January 2, 2003, through July 15, 2014 and July 16, 2014, through March 20, 2015 and to present." Daniel Wanwig has been the psychiatrist for Ken Lee since 2004 and is still currently seeing Ken Lee.

On October 21, 2014 Dr. Thomas Young wrote a response letter to the claim's manager of SEDGWICK in Lexington Kentucky claim number W475261 where he mentions reviewing some of the surveillance tapes and his evaluation on Kenneth Lee. In this letter Dr. Young mentions how Kenneth Lee was on "remarkably strong pain medications" He explains how "These medications would lower the threshold of pain and embolden Mr. Lee to incidentally use the right arm on occasion which is what the video showed." He also says "he was unnaturally using the left arm predominantly more than the right when his body mechanics would have been so much more efficient if he had used the right elbow. Indeed, if

Mr. Lee knew that he was being secretly recorded he would not have done much different as he relied on the left and limited the right arm use."

Dr. Young also says "The first video showed Mr. Lee at a salvage scrap yard helping to load items of scrap metal onto a transfer truck.

Throughout that multiple minute video this right hand dominant man used primarily his left arm even in an unnatural way as he moved material using tricept muscle strength and having to cross over his body to reach and throw versus the more natural ergonomic movements that a well right arm would have provided." This letter continues further into what would be expected of a patient.

Dr. Young continues on the second page mentioning how Kenneth Lee was worsened by this activity. Dr. Young mentions how the second surveillance tape he reviewed from 10/18/2013 shows that Kenneth Lee had a worsened status and allowed for his daughter to help put his seat belt on and open doors for him. Dr. Young also goes into detail that doctors chart notes from 10/18/2013 with Doctor Paul B. Nutter, show elevated blood pressure suggesting pain where Kenneth Lee then received ongoing pain medication. Dr. Young ends this note saying "This patient should remain on time loss and be advanced to pain management and vocational services.

However, the letter also says "In summary, both videos were exactly consistent with what would be expected with this injured worker. There was no "Ah-ha" moment even when he recruited his right arm because he was encouraged to use his right arm and if the right arm was not as painful as he maintained then why did he not use it throughout the video instead of struggling to move the material in a unnatural manner using his left side? The answer to that question is that the right arm poorly tolerated even the limited activity that it was recruited to do and the second video confirmed that the consequences of using the arm was significant worsening the next day."

Dr. Daniel Wanwig testified under oath under penalty of perjury of the laws of the State of Washington on November 23,2016. On page 33 lines 13 to 18, page 25 line 16 to 20, and page 27 line 21 to 23 Dr.

Wanwig mentions he had no findings or documentation that he believed Kenneth Lee was malingering and that Kenneth Lee's bipolar disorder was lit up and caused by the industrial accident.

Dr. Paul B. Nutter documented in his chart notes of 05/20/2013 that Kenneth Lee said "I should be at work" Dr. Nutter also documented in his chart notes 10/29/2012 about how his driving capabilities have been affected and how his kids have taken over all of the housework and helps

him cook and shop as well as comb his hair and put a shirt on. Dr. Nutter also mentions that he became tearful that day. Dr. Nutter also stated in his Declaration of December 3<sup>rd</sup>, 2007 "Mr. Kenneth Lee is permanently and totally disabled…".

Dr. Lynn L. Staker stated "On 06/04/15, [ see APPENDIX ]I did have an opportunity to observe the videos of Mr. Lee. I do note that he does favor the right arm and uses his left arm most of the time. From the video, I can see that certainly he is not faking the problem he is having with his right arm."

David B. Condon attorney at law told Kenneth Lee in a Letter dated May 9<sup>th</sup>, 2014 to stay as active as possible prior to an exam and to not rest up. He also says "you should tell the physicians precisely how you are feeling; if something bothers or hurts you, tell them. It is important that they see you in your normal disabled condition."

On August 3, 2016 under Judge Hansen Dr. Matthew Drake, on page 17 line 1 to 25 to page 18 line 1 to 23, claims that he had reviewed medical records for Kenneth Lee dating all the way back to 1990 and claims he had these records on hand at the time. Fast forward to Dr.

Drakes testimony under Judge Ellsworth January 19, 2017 page 33 lines 7 to 25 to page 34 lines 1 to 15, he says he is unsure if he had ever reviewed

these medical records and that he may of just had them sent to him in preparation for his testimony. January 19<sup>th</sup>, 2017 in Colloquy Page 35 lines 20 to 22 after Dr. Matthew Drakes testimony Ms. Greer states that DR. Drake was active duty testifying from the middle east and that they didn't go through 16 years of chart notes with him. Please note that page 35 was redacted from the reading.

#### **ARGUMENT**

Kenneth Lee sustained his injury while working for the Boeing Company. He has doctors that he has seen for more than one visit that stated he was not faking or malingering. The only doctors stating he was malingering were doctors he had only seen for one visit and were paid by Labor and industries and/or The Boeing Company. He has doctors stating that the videos only further show the damage that occurred from his 2000 industrial injury. How could someone be faking an illness and go through surgery that doctors requested to fix? Why would Dr.Staker wish to have a EMG and nerve studies done on Kenneth Lee if he was malingering and making up his illness? Dr. Nutter was in the middle of a wrongful death charge when he signed the document saying Kenneth Lee was misrepresenting himself.

The "evidence" for willful misrepresentation and malingering that Jennifer Kramer and Lucretia Greer used in front of the jury was deemed unestablished, unconvincing, unclear, and uncogent. Kenneth Lee has lost almost all of his independence due to his 2000 industrial injury. Kenneth Lee has had to ask several people in his life for physical help-even down to getting a shirt on in the morning. Kenneth Lee has endured countless,

unnecessary and inhumane amounts of pain and suffering due to his industrial injury and The Boeing Company and Labor and Industries drawing out his case and stripping him of his workers compensation that he is lawfully entitled to. By Boeing and the L&I stripping Kenneth Lee of his workers compensation they forced Kenneth Lee to have to suffer financial burdens and rent his house out just so he won't loose it. Kenneth Lee was also forced to seek help from the state financially just to get money for food through EBT.

One document was found to of been altered. Who is to say they didn't alter more? Dr.Drake had only seen Kenneth Lee for one visit.

Surely you cannot believe a doctor can declare there was malingering in only one visit. Joan Sullivan only saw Kenneth Lee in 2008 for one visit and declared he was malingering years later. Kenneth Lee has had to go about life dealing with constant pain everyday due to his industrial injury of 2000. Kenneth Lee was injured more than once while working for Boeing due to their company's safety negligence. Doctors who are/ have not been paid for by Boeing and/ or L&I have already found that Kenneth Lee was not and has not been malingering or faking and that syptoms that Kenneth Lee has shown demonstrates the diagnosis of Chronic Regional Pain Syndrome or CRPS for short.

Had Dr. Drake gone over all of Kenneth Lee's medical history from Dr. Nutter and Dr. Ted Becker he would have found significant skin discoloration on Kenneth Lee throughout medical chart notes. These Chart notes that Dr. Drake claimed to of gone through would of shown him all the symptoms Kenneth Lee was suffering from 2000 to Present. Jennifer Kramer refused to give Kenneth Lee his own children's depositions unless he paid her \$250. These same depositions were used during questioning of Christal Lee, Chelsea Lee, and Brendon Lee for their testimonies in front of Judge Hansen. These depositions should have been put in as evidence and Kenneth Lee should have received them since they were used against him. Judge Serko also unfairly overruled Kenneth Lee during the rulings of evidence and appeared to show bias against Kenneth Lee. Judge Serko should have excused herself from the trial due to her of just being involved in a wrongful death case that included Dr.Nutter. Dr. Nutter was Kenneth Lee's former physician and testified in Kenneth Lee's case therefore there was a conflict of interest.

Kenneth Lee never faked or misrepresented his injuries to anybody. Kenneth Lee hid a lot of the pain he was suffering from his kids so that they wouldn't worry as much. As time went, it became harder to hide from his kids who grew up and started noticing the little things they once overlooked. Kenneth Lee's kids had to help their father constantly

and from a young age. By time all of Kenneth Lee's kids became teenagers they had become accustomed to doing all of the housework and helping their dad. Kenneth Lee suffered loss of enjoyment as not just an adult but a parent.

He could not run next to his kids as they tried to learn how to ride a bike. He couldn't play catch with his kids or even be involved in the tiniest of tickle fights. He struggled more days than others with basic activities even down to walking far distances. Kenneth Lee couldn't even help his kids physically do oil changes. He could only stand off to the side and tell them what to do the best of his ability. The Boeing Company is also at fault of Kenneth Lee's current mental illnesses as had he not of sustained the industrial injury of 2000 he would not have had his bipolar disorder and depression be lit up, aggravated, or exacerbated. Had he never sustained this injury he could of lived out his entire life without suffering due to these mental illnesses. The appeals judge states that Kenneth was holding his shirt. If they were to use a magnifying glass, or would have looked closer at details, they would have noticed he was creating a fist with his hand, which is natural for his right arm, and was tucked under his stomach so it couldn't rise.

#### CONCLUSION

Kenneth Lee requests that the Supreme Court accept this matter for review, reverse the Court of Appeals and Superior Court and remand this matter to the Department of Labor and Industries with an order directing the Department to accept Kenneth Lee claim.

RESPECIFULLY SUBMITTED this 31st day of July, 2020

Kenneth Lee

29226 8th ave east, Roy, WA 98580