FILED SUPREME COURT STATE OF WASHINGTON 9/21/2020 2:58 PM BY SUSAN L. CARLSON CLERK

NO. 98854-4

SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

KENNETH LEE, Petitioner,

v.

THE BOEING CO. & DEP'T OF LABOR AND INDUSTRIES, Respondents.

ANSWER THE BOEING COMPANY

JENNIFER A. KRAMER (25226) Reinisch Wilson Weier, PC 15395 SE 30th Pl., Ste 230 Bellevue, WA 98007 Phone: (206) 622-7940

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

IV. ARGUMENT

In order to obtain this Court's review, Mr. Lee must support his Petition with a clearly articulated and legally sound theory upon which discretionary review could be based. RAP 13.4(b) provides the *only* four bases that support this Court's review.

- (1) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a decision of the Supreme Court; or
- (2) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a published decision of the Court of Appeals; or
- (3) If a significant question of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington or of the United States is involved; or
- (4) If the petition involves an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined by the Supreme Court.

RAP 13.4(a)(1-4). Mr. Lee's Petition does not contend that any of these considerations support acceptance of review. RAP 13.4(a)(7). The issues Mr. Lee raises do not meet any of these criterion.

Mr. Lee's Petition does not identify any significant question of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington or the United States,

and indeed, there are no constitutional issues presented by this case. It involved the routine application of statutes and case law under Title 51. Even if he had identified a constitutional argument, he did not provide any briefing to entitle review on this basis. RAP 13.4(a)(6)&(7); *Havens v. C* & *D Plastics, Inc.*, 124 Wn.2d 158, 169, 876 P.2d 435 (1994).

Nor does Mr. Lee identify any conflict between the other decisions of this Court or any other Court of Appeals' decisions regarding the issues raised by him. RAP 13.4(a)(6)&(7). Moreover, Mr. Lee's Petition does not identify an issue of substantial public interest requiring a determination by this Court. *Id.* Ironically, public interest would likely support the outcome of this case as society supports penalizing one who misuses workers' compensation benefits, such as Mr. Lee. There is no identification of any basis to grant review, or argument in its support. RAP 13.4(a)(7).

A. Mr. Lee identifies no basis for review of the Superior Court's rulings.

For the most part, the same complaints raised by Mr. Lee in the Court of Appeals are raised in Petitioner's Brief. He failed to support his assignment of errors at the Court of Appeals, and he continues to do so before this Court. The Petitioner's Brief again fails to cite to the record, but also fatefully fails to state why review should be accepted under one or

more of the tests by which review is governed, and the Brief offers no argument in support of his position. RAP 13.4(c)(6)&(7). He simply replicates his arguments with meager details offered.

At the Court of Appeals, Mr. Lee broadly assigned error to "denied redactions" of the CABR. Appellant's Br. at ii & ix. The lone citation to the record offered by Mr. Lee referenced an exchange between attorneys concerning an objection during the testimony of Matthew Drake, M.D. *Id.* at ix. The two lines about which he complained *were* redacted. CP 1296 (pre-redaction), 2369 (post-redaction). Mr. Lee failed to identify any *additional* alleged errors in regard to redaction in violation of RAP 10.3(a)(6). Thus, the Court of Appeals correctly ruled that the Superior Court did not err in its redaction of the testimony. Op. at 10. He offers the same scant information to this Court. Pet'r Br. at 2.

Without any identification of one of the grounds permitting acceptance for review of this issue, coupled with appropriate legal argument supporting the asserted justification for review, the issue simply cannot be accepted for review. RAP 13.4(c)(7).

Mr. Lee again alleges improper service of court papers. Pet'r Br. at 2. The Court of Appeals did not consider this assignment of error as Mr. Lee did not include any argument or citation to the record in his Appellant's Brief. Op. at 10.

Even if he were permitted to only now identify the incident about which he complains, Mr. Lee has once again failed to do so. Pet'r Br. at 2 & 5. Without any identification of one of the grounds for acceptance of review, with argument in support, the issue simply cannot be accepted for review. RAP 13.4(c)(7).

An issue has again been raised regarding the admission of exhibits. Pet'r Br. at 2. At the Court of Appeals, Mr. Lee failed to: cite any preserved objection in the court record regarding the admission of an exhibit (ER 103); identify any exhibit, and assign error to its admission per RAP 10.4(c) and RAP 10.3(g); and/or provide argument in support of his position as required by RAP 10.3(a)(6). *See* Appellant's Br. at ix. The Court of Appeals found no error. Op. at 11. Those same deficits are replicated before this Court.

Without any identification of one of the grounds for acceptance of review, argument in support (with references to the record per RAP 13.4(c)(6)), the issue simply cannot be accepted for review. RAP 13.4(c)(7).

Mr. Lee continues to allege a vaguely identified issue regarding the jury instructions. Pet'r Br. at 2; Appellant's Br. at x. Mr. Lee did not submit any jury instructions; he submitted legal argument. RP (11/01/18) at 8-19. Though given the chance, he failed to place on the record any

objections or exceptions to the final set of instructions. He failed to adequately address this issue before the Court of Appeals. CR 51(f); RAP 10.3(g). Accordingly, the Court of Appeals correctly ruled that Mr. Lee failed to present any argument regarding the insufficiency of the jury instructions utilized by the Superior Court, and found no error. Op. at 11. His failures persist.

Without any identification of one of the grounds for acceptance of review, argument in support (with references to the record per RAP 13.4(c)(6)), the issue simply cannot be accepted for review. RAP 13.4(c)(7).

Lastly, the Court of Appeals chose to address Mr. Lee's complaint that Judge Serko wrongly failed to recuse herself, and it concluded that Mr. Lee failed to establish any reason why she should have recused herself per CJC Canon 2.11(A). Op. at 11-12 (response to Appellant's Br. at iii). He again states Judge Serko should have recused herself, but because she had been "involved in a wrongful death case that included Dr. Nutter." Pet'r Br. at 3 & 15. There is no citation to the record offered with regard to this renewed issue even at this late stage. *Id*.

Without any identification of one of the grounds for acceptance of review, argument in support (with references to the record per RAP

13.4(c)(6)), the issue simply cannot be accepted for review. RAP 13.4(c)(7).

B. Mr. Lee has not identified, or argued, any basis upon which review of the jury's verdict can be granted.

Mr. Lee also broadly contends that substantial evidence did not support the conclusions of the Court of Appeals or the verdict. Mr. Lee failed to assign error to this issue in the Court of Appeals, thus precluding its consideration now. *Pappas v. Hershberger*, 85 Wn.2d 152, 153-54, 530 P.2d 642 (1975). Furthermore, as with all other issues raised by Mr. Lee, he fails to explain how this issue might qualify for review, and he fails to provide argument in support of its review. RAP 13.4(b), RAP 13.4(c)(6) & (7). The issue does not qualify for review.

When a case arising under Title 51 is tried by a jury, the weight of the evidence and the credibility of the witnesses is to be determined by the jury. *Hastings v. Dep't of Labor & Indus.*, 24 Wn.2d 1, 5, 163 P.2d 142 (1945). A verdict must stand if there is any substantial evidence to support it, meaning evidence that would convince an unprejudiced thinking mind of the truth of the fact to which the evidence was directed. *Omeitt v. Dep't of Labor & Indus.*, 21 Wn.2d 684, 686, 152 P.2d 973 (1944). This standard was exceeded in Mr. Lee's case.

Mr. Lee's presentation at medical examinations became more and more extreme as the years passed following his innocuous right biceps injury, culminating with his preposterous claim that he was unable to use either one of his arms. His outlandish behavior begged for an objective assessment, which was obtained via surveillance.

In contrast to his slow-moving walk, with his arms pinned to his sides, he was captured driving, eating, twirling his car keys, shopping, using his arms to toss scrap metal, and gesturing with his arms. When Dr. Nutter reviewed the footage, he concluded Mr. Lee had been putting on nothing more than an act the entire time he treated him. Notably, his opinion as the attending physician required the jury's "special consideration." *Hamilton v. Dep't of Labor & Indus.*, 111 Wn.2d 569, 761 P.2d 618 (1988).

When confronted by Dr. Nutter, he tried to claim a case of mistaken identity, and when that failed, he fainted. Arising from the floor in a daze, he used his healthy arms to push himself off the floor, and momentarily forgot that his arms were folded in a manner inconsistent with his usual, disabled presentation. Upon realizing the disruption of his ruse, he then placed his arms rigidly at his sides. His intent to deceive was openly advertised when he pulled over to switch positions in the car with one of his older children so that he would not been seen arriving at a

claim-related appointment as the driver of the car. The willful misrepresentation determination was amply supported by the evidence, which included a parade of medical professionals such as Dr. Sullivan, Dr. Nutter, Dr. Drake, Dr. Hunt, and Dr. Robinson.

From that determination, the rest of the determinations flowed. The doctors agreed that Mr. Lee suffered a right biceps injury that fully recovered years ago, with no impairment, and with no work restrictions having resulted. They found no condition involving his left shoulder, and certainly no other conditions, that were related to his original injury. The only doctors who testified on behalf of Mr. Lee lacked the benefit of review of any, or all, of the surveillance materials.

The totality of evidence was easily sufficient to convince an unprejudiced thinking mind that Mr. Lee willfully misrepresented his physical condition to obtain workers' compensation benefits, and that his claim was appropriately closed upon discovery of his fraud. The Court of Appeals had the foresight to detail the facts of this case in its decision, though it certainly was not required to do so in order to support its rulings about exhibits, jury instructions, and the like. However, in doing so, it left no question that the substantial evidence did indeed support the verdict regarding all issues it addressed.

Mr. Lee's Petition for Review wholly lacks the required legal substance to obtain review by this Court. Instead, he argues issues of perceived unfairness, none of which were found to have been even marginally substantiated by the Court of Appeals.

V. CONCLUSION

Mr. Lee failed to preserve and/or raise and argue any bases that would support this Court's review. For the reasons discussed above, the Court should deny review.